# NATIONAL ASIAN AMERICAN SURVEY 2016 Post-Election Survey

S. Karthick Ramakrishnan, Director Jennifer Lee, co-Pl Taeku Lee, co-Pl Janelle Wong, co-Pl

## **Table of Contents**

MODULE S: SCREENER	
MODULE 1: IMMIGRANT BACKGROUND	
MODULE 2: VOTING AND THE ELECTION	
MODULE 3: ECONOMIC SECURITY AND INEQUALITY	g
MODULE 4: IDENTITY AND RACIAL GROUP FORMATION	11
MODULE 5: DISCRIMINATION	16
MODULE 6: INTERGROUP CONTACT	20
MODULE 7: AFFIRMATIVE ACTION	21
MODULE 8: LGBTQ	25
MODULE 9: REPRO	26
MODULE 10: DEMOGRAPHICS	27

This survey was supported by a major grant from the National Science Foundation (Award #1558986), with support for supplemental data collections from the Ford Foundation, the California Immigration Research Initiative, and the Wallace H. Coulter Foundation.

#### **MODULE S: SCREENER**

[HIDDEN VAR: HALFASIAN. IF = 0, ASKED OF ALL; IF = 1 ASKED FOR 50% OF RACE=ASIAN AMERICAN; ASKED 100% OF ALL OTHERS]

[HIDDEN VAR: HALFALL. IF = 0, ASKED OF ALL; IF = 1, ASKED OF 50% OF ALL RESPONDENTS]

- S1. **[LANDLINE]** Hello, we are conducting a telephone survey on behalf of professors from the University of California. We are conducting this opinion survey about the public's views on a few things. This is for research purposes only [if needed, This is NOT a sales call].
- S2.1 **[LANDLINE]** I'd like to ask a few questions of the **[RANDOMIZE:** "Youngest male, 18 years of age or older, who is now at home." **AND** "Youngest female, 18 years of age or older, who is now at home?"] **{IF NO MALE/FEMALE, ASK}** May I please speak with the Youngest Male/Female, 18 years of age or older, who is now at home?
- S2.2 **[CELL PHONE]** Hello, we are conducting a telephone survey on behalf of professors from the University of California. We are conducting this opinion survey about the public's views on a few things. This is NOT a sales call.

I know I am calling you on a cell phone. If you are now driving a car or doing any activity requiring your full attention, I need to call you back later. {IF R SAYS IT IS NOT A GOOD TIME, TRY TO ARRANGE A TIME TO CALL BACK}

S3.	[ASK ONLY OF ASIAN AND LATINO/HISPANIC SAMPLES] Are you comfortable continuing this
cor	versation in English?
$\mathbf{C}$	Yes (1)
O	No (2)
S4.	[IF S3=2] Would you prefer we talk in another language? [HIDDEN VARIABLE INTLANGUAGE]
$\mathbf{O}$	Mandarin (1)
O	Cantonese (2)
$\mathbf{C}$	Korean (3)
$\mathbf{C}$	Vietnamese (4)
$\mathbf{C}$	Hindi (5)
$\mathbf{C}$	Tagalog (6)
$\mathbf{C}$	Japanese (7)
O	Hmong (8)
$\mathbf{C}$	Cambodian (9)
$\mathbf{C}$	Laotian (10)
$\mathbf{C}$	Spanish (11)
$\mathbf{O}$	Bangladeshi (12)
$\mathbf{O}$	Urdu (13)
O	Some other language (SPECIFY IF KNOWN) (12) [TERMINATE]

S4. [IF PERSON SAYS I'VE TAKEN THIS SURVEY BEFORE] We conducted a survey of adults in August through October this year. We have a different set of questions this time around that we believe you

<ul> <li>will find of interest. May we proceed?</li> <li>Willing to proceed, took survey before (1)</li> <li>Willing to proceed, did not take survey before (2)</li> <li>Not willing to proceed, (3) {TERMINATE}</li> <li>Person took survey before, not willing to proceed (4) {TERMINATE}</li> </ul>
S5. Just to be sure, are you 18 years or older?  Yes (1)  No (2) [TERMINATE]
<ul> <li>S5.A And for statistical purposes only, are you below age 35, or age 35 and above?</li> <li>Below age 35 (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE YOUTH=1]</li> <li>35 or above (2) [HIDDEN VARIABLE YOUTH=0]</li> <li>Refused (99) [TERMINATE]</li> </ul>
S6. Your participation is voluntary, you can refuse to answer any question, and your answers will remain completely anonymous.
<b>{READ IF PERSON ASKS FOR CLARIFICATION}</b> Anonymous means that I will record no information about you that could identify you. If you have any further questions about your participation in this research study, we are happy to tell you who to contact for more information. <b>{IF YES}</b> For more information, you may contact the IRB Administrator at the University of California Riverside. If you have any questions about your rights as a research subject, please contact the UCR Office of Research Integrity at (951)827-6332 or to contact them by email, please use IRB@ucr.edu. You may also contact Professor Karthick Ramakrishnan at UC Riverside at 951-827-5540 if you have questions about the study.
S7. What is your gender?  Male (1)  Female (2)  Something else (3)  Refused (99) [TERMINATE]
S8. What is the highest degree or level of schooling you have completed?  No schooling completed (1)  Some schooling, no high school degree / GED (2)  High school degree / GED (3)  Some college, but no degree (4)  College degree or Bachelor's degree (5)  Graduate or professional degree (6)  Don't Know (88) [TERMINATE]  Refused (99) [TERMINATE]

S9. Were you born in the United States or were you born in another country?

- United States (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1]
- Another country (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE FORBORN= 1}
- Refused (99) [TERMINATE]

S9.A [IF CELL PHONE] **{CONFIRM STATE OF RESIDENCE}** And in which state do you currently live?

- Alabama (01)
- Alaska (02)
- Arizona (04)
- Arkansas (05)
- California (06)
- Colorado (08)
- Connecticut (09)
- Delaware (10)
- District of Columbia (11)
- Florida (12)
- Georgia (13)
- Hawaii (15)
- Idaho (16)
- Illinois (17)
- Indiana (18)
- Iowa (19)
- Kansas (20)
- Kentucky (21)
- Louisiana (22)
- Maine (23)
- Maryland (24)
- Massachusetts (25)
- Michigan (26)
- Minnesota (27)
- Mississippi (28)
- Missouri (29)
- Montana (30)
- Nebraska (31)
- Nevada (32)
- New Hampshire (33)
- New Jersey (34)
- New Mexico (35)
- New York (36)
- North Carolina (37)
- North Dakota (38)
- Ohio (39)
- Oklahoma (40)
- Oregon (41)
- Pennsylvania (42)
- Rhode Island (44)
- South Carolina (45)
- South Dakota (46)
- Tennessee (47)
- Texas (48)
- Utah (49)

- Vermont (50)
- Virginia (51)
- Washington (53)
- West Virginia (54)
- Wisconsin (55)
- Wyoming (56)

•

- Other (77) [TERMINATE]
- Don't Know (88) [TERMINATE]
- Refused (99) [TERMINATE]

S10.1 Do you consider any part of your background to be <u>Asian or Asian-American</u>, such as Chinese, Filipino, Indian, or <u>Pacific Islander</u> like Native Hawaiian or Samoan?

{IF THEY ONLY SAY "YES," ASK "WHICH GROUP?" IF THEY IDENTIFY WITH MORE THAN ONE GROUP, ASK "WHICH GROUP DO YOU IDENTIFY WITH MOST"?}

(HI (HI (HI	DDEN VARIABLE RACE = ASIAN OR ASIAN AMERICA DDEN VARIABLE RACE = PACIFIC ISLANDER IF S10.1: DDEN VARIABLE NHPI = 1 IF S10.1=12,13,16,25] DDEN VARIABLE RETHNIC = S10.1] DDEN VARIABLE SOUTHASIAN = 1 IF S10.1 = 1, 6, 10	=12,	
	Bangladeshi (1) Cambodian (2) Chinese (3) Filipino (4) Hmong (5) Indian (6) Japanese (7) Korean (8) Laotian (9) [TERMINATE] Pakistani (10) Vietnamese (11) Native Hawaiian (12) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NHPI=1 IF ONLY 12 CHECKED] Samoan (13) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NHPI=1 IF ONLY 13 CHECKED]		Bhutanese (14) [TERMINATE] Burmese (15) [TERMINATE] Fijian (16) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NHPI=1 IF ONLY 16 CHECKED] Indonesian (17) [TERMINATE] Malaysian (18) [TERMINATE] Mongolian (19) [TERMINATE] Nepali (20) [TERMINATE] Singaporean (21) [TERMINATE] Sri Lankan (22) [TERMINATE] Taiwanese (23) Thai (24) [TERMINATE] Tongan (25) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NHPI=1 IF ONLY 25 CHECKED] Other Asian (30) {ASK IF UNSURE; ENTER IN ENGLISH}[TERMINATE]  Don't Know (88) [TERMINATE]  Refused (99) [TERMINATE]
	None of the above / Not Asian or Pacific Islander (0)		
RES	0.2 [IF S10.1 = 0] What racial or ethnic groups described by the second state of the s	ply}	-
	White (3) [RACE=WHITE, RACES="WHITES"] Black (4) [RACE=BLACK, RACES="BLACKS OR AFRICA African American (5) [RACE=AFRICAN AMERICAN, II Hispanic or Latino (6) [RACE=LATINO, RACES="HISPA Asian or Asian American (1) [RACE=ASIAN AMERICAN Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (2) [RACE=PACIF ISLANDERS"][NHPI=1] Native American or American Indian (7) [RACE=NAT	RACI PANI AN, I	ES="BLACKS OR AFRICAN AMERICANS"] CS OR LATINOS"] RACES="ASIAN AMERICANS"] BLANDER, RACES="PACIFIC

Multi-racial, Mixed (9) <b>{DO NOT READ} [RACE=MULTIRACIAL, RACES="MULTIRACIAL AMERICANS"]</b> Don't Know (88) <b>[TERMINATE]</b> Refused (99) <b>[TERMINATE]</b>
0.3 [IF S10.2 HAS MORE THAN ONE CHOICE, BUT DO NOT ASK IF S10.2=9] Which racial group do you st identify with?  White (3) [RACE=WHITE, RACES="WHITES"]  Black (4) [RACE=BLACK, RACES="BLACKS OR AFRICAN AMERICANS"]  African American (5) [RACE=AFRICAN AMERICAN, RACES="BLACKS OR AFRICAN AMERICANS"]  Hispanic or Latino (6) [RACE=LATINO, RACES="HISPANICS OR LATINOS"]  Asian or Asian American (1) [RACE=ASIAN AMERICAN, RACES="ASIAN AMERICANS"]  Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (2) [RACE=PACIFIC ISLANDER, RACES="PACIFIC ISLANDERS"][NHPI=1]  Native American or American Indian (7) [RACE=NATIVEAM, RACES="NATIVE AMERICANS"]  Multi-racial (9) {DO NOT READ} [RACE=MULTIRACIAL, RACES="MULTIRACIAL AMERICANS"]  Don't Know (88) [TERMINATE]  Refused (99) [TERMINATE]
0.6 [IF RACE=ASIAN AMERICAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER AND IF \$10.3 NOT ASKED] In addition to your THNIC] background, is there any other racial group that describes you? {DO NOT READ LIST}  No, no other racial or ethnic groups describe me (0)  [LINE BREAK]
Asian or Asian American (1) Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (2) White (3) Black (4) African American (5) Latino (6) Native American or American Indian (7) Something else {ENTER IN ENGLISH} (9) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)
0.6A [IF S10.6=3,4,5,6,7] Which racial group do you most identify with?  White (3) [RACE=WHITE, RACES="WHITES"]  Black (4) [RACE=BLACK, RACES="BLACKS OR AFRICAN AMERICANS"]  African American (5) [RACE=AFRICAN AMERICAN, RACES="BLACKS OR AFRICAN AMERICANS"]  Hispanic or Latino (6) [RACE=LATINO, RACES="HISPANICS OR LATINOS"]  Asian or Asian American (1) [RACE=ASIAN AMERICAN, RACES="ASIAN AMERICANS"]  Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (2) [RACE=PACIFIC ISLANDER, RACES="PACIFIC ISLANDERS"][NHPI=1]  Native American or American Indian (7) [RACE=NATIVEAM, RACES="NATIVE AMERICANS"]  Multi-racial (9) {DO NOT READ} [RACE=MULTIRACIAL, RACES="MULTIRACIAL AMERICANS"]

S10.7 **[IF RACE = LATINO]** Families of Hispanic or Latino origin or background in the United States come from many different countries. From which country do you trace your Latino heritage?

S10.8 **[IF S10.7 HAS MORE THAN ONE RESPONSE]** "Which country does most of your family come from?"

### \$10.9 [IF \$10.7=UNITED STATES OR \$10.8 = UNITED STATES]

Do you trace your Latino heritage, however many generations back, to any country other than the U.S.? [ACCEPT MULTIPLE RESPONSES]

12 Mexico 1 Argentina 13 Nicaragua 2 Bolivia 14 Panama 3 Chile 15 Paraguay 4 Colombia 16 Peru 5 Costa Rica 17 Puerto Rico 6 Cuba 18 Spain 7 Dominican Republic 19 Uruguay 8 Ecuador

8 Ecuador 20 Venezuela 9 El Salvador 23 (DO NOT READ) U.S.A.

10 Guatemala 88 Don't Know 11 Honduras 99 Refused

## [HIDDEN VARIABLE]

- 41. RETHNIC MEXICAN = 1 IF S10.7 = 12 ONLY; S10.8 = 12; or S10.9 = 12 ONLY
- 42. RETHNIC = ARGENTINIAN IF \$10.7 = 1 ONLY; \$10.8 = 1; or \$10.9 = 1 ONLY
- 43. RETHNIC = BOLIVIAN IF S10.7 = 2 ONLY; S10.8 = 2; or S10.9 = 2 ONLY
- 44. RETHNIC = CHILEAN IF \$10.7 = 3 ONLY; \$10.8 = 3; or \$10.9 = 3 ONLY
- 45. RETHNIC = COLOMBIAN IF S10.7 = 4 ONLY; S10.8 = 4; or S10.9 = 4 ONLY
- 46. RETHNIC = COSTA RICAN IF \$10.7 = 5 ONLY; \$10.8 = 5; or \$10.9 = 5 ONLY
- 47. RETHNIC = CUBAN IF S10.7 = 6 ONLY; S10.8 = 6; or S10.9 = 6 ONLY
- 48. RETHNIC = DOMINICAN IF S10.7 = 7 ONLY; S10.8 = 7; or S10.9 = 7 ONLY
- 49. RETHNIC = ECUADORAN IF S10.7 = 8 ONLY; S10.8 = 8; or S10.9 = 8 ONLY
- 50. RETHNIC = SALVADORAN IF S10.7 = 9 ONLY; S10.8 = 9; or S10.9 = 9 ONLY
- 51. RETHNIC = GUATEMALAN IF \$10.7 = 10 ONLY; \$10.8 = 10; or \$10.9 = 10 ONLY
- 52. RETHNIC = HONDURAN IF \$10.7 = 11 ONLY; \$10.8 = 11; or \$10.9 = 11 ONLY
- 53. RETHNIC = NICARAGUAN IF S10.7 = 13 ONLY; S10.8 = 13; or S10.9 = 13 ONLY
- 54. RETHNIC = PANAMANIAN IF \$10.7 = 14 ONLY; \$10.8 = 14; or \$10.9 = 14 ONLY
- 55. RETHNIC = PARAGUAYAN IF S10.7 = 15 ONLY; S10.8 = 15; or S10.9 = 15 ONLY
- 56. RETHNIC = PERUVIAN IF S10.7 = 16 ONLY; S10.8 = 16; or S10.9 = 16 ONLY
- 57. RETHNIC = PUERTORICAN IF \$10.7 = 7 ONLY; \$10.8 = 17; or \$10.9 = 17 ONLY
- 58. RETHNIC = SPANISH IF S10.7 = 18 ONLY; S10.8 = 18; or S10.9 = 18 ONLY
- 59. RETHNIC = URUGUYAN IF S10.7 = 19 ONLY; S10.8 = 19; or S10.9 = 19 ONLY
- 60. RETHNIC = VENEZUELAN IF S10.7 = 20 ONLY; S10.8 = 20; or S10.9 = 20 ONLY

# MODULE 1: IMMIGRANT BACKGROUND

in to PU O	.1 Now we'd like to know just a bit about your backhe United States? ["mainland United States" if Niet ERTORICAN] Yes (1) No (2) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)	_	•	
S10 O O	.2 And was your father born in the United States?  D.1=13,16,25 or RETHNIC = PUERTORICAN]  Yes (1)  No (2)  Don't Know (88)  Refused (99)	["mair	nland United States" if NHPI =1 AN	<u>D</u>
	.3A [IF RACE = ASIAN AMERICAN AND FORBORN :			
	untry or territory" if NHPI] [CREATE HIDDEN VARI	ABLE C	COUNTRY FOR ALL VALUES EXCEPT	2, DK,
RE	<u> </u>			
[TV	NO COLUMNS; NOTE LAYOUT BELOW]			
0	United States (0) [FORBORN = 0] [HIDDEN	0	Malaysia (13)	
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN		Maldives (14)	
	= 0 (NATIVE)] [HIDDEN VAR	O	Nepal (15)	
	COUNTRY=UNITED STATES]	O	North Korea (16)	
0	Puerto Rico (FORBORN = 0) (1) [HIDDEN	O	North Vietnam (17)	
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN	O	Pakistan (18)	
	= 0 (NATIVE)] [HIDDEN VAR	O	Philippines (19)	
	COUNTRY=UNITED STATES]	O	Samoa (20)	
0	Hawaii <b>{FORBORN = 0}</b> (2) [HIDDEN	O	Singapore (21)	
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN	O	South Korea (22)	
	= 0 (NATIVE)] [HIDDEN VAR	O	South Vietnam (23)	
	COUNTRY=UNITED STATES]	O	Sri Lanka / Ceylon (24)	
		O	Taiwan (25)	
$\mathbf{O}$	Bangladesh (3)	O	Thailand / Siam (26)	
O	Bhutan (4)	O	Vietnam (27)	
0	Burma / Myanmar (5)	O	Other (28)	{WRITE
O	Cambodia / Kampuchea (6)		IN ENGLISH}	
O	China (People's Republic of China) (7)	O	DK (88)	
O	India (8)	O	REF (99)	
O	Indonesia (9)			
O	Japan (10)			
0	Korea (11)			
0	Laos (11)			

# Q1.3B [IF RACE = LATINO AND FORBORN = 1] And what country were you born in? [CREATE HIDDEN VARIABLE COUNTRY FOR ALL VALUES EXCEPT 2 DK, REF]

# [TWO COLUMNS; NOTE LAYOUT BELOW]

O	United States (0) [FORBORN = 0] [HIDDEN	15 Mexico
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN	16 Nicaragua
	= 0 (NATIVE)]	17 Panama
O	Puerto Rico (FORBORN = 0) (1) [HIDDEN	18 Paraguay
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN	19 Peru
	= 0 (NATIVE)]	20 Puerto Rico
O	Hawaii <b>{FORBORN = 0}</b> (2) <b>[HIDDEN</b>	21 Spain
	VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1; VARIABLE FORBORN	22 Uruguay
	= 0 (NATIVE)] [HIDDEN VAR	23 Venezuela
	COUNTRY=UNITED STATE]	24 (DO NOT READ) U.S.A.
		25 OTHER {WRITE IN ENGLISH}
4 A	rgentina	
5 B	olivia	88 Don't Know
6 C	hile	99 Refused
7 C	olombia	
8 C	osta Rica	
9 C	uba	
10	Dominican Republic	
11	Ecuador	
12	El Salvador	
13	Guatemala	
14	Honduras	
Q1	.4 [FORBORN =1 ONLY] And are you currently a U.S.	citizen, or on a visa, green card, or something
else	e?	
O	US Citizen (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 1, HIDE	DEN VARIABLE NATURALIZED = 1]
O	Visa (2) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 0, HIDDEN V	'ARIABLE NATURALIZED = 0]
O	Green Card (3) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 0, HI	DDEN VARIABLE NATURALIZED = 0]
O	Something else (4) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 0,	HIDDEN VARIABLE NATURALIZED = 0]
O	Don't Know (88) [HIDDEN VARIABLE CITIZEN = 0, H	IDDEN VARIABLE NATURALIZED = 0]

# **MODULE 2: VOTING AND THE ELECTION**

Q2.1A Now I'd like to ask about your views on interested, interested, somewhat interested, of the view				rested a	re you ir	n politics – very
Q2.2 Now I'd like to ask you about some peopl news recently. For each, please tell me wheth somewhat <u>unfavorable</u> , or <u>very</u> unfavorable in	er you h	ave a <u>ve</u>				
If you haven't heard of them {6}, or if you don' say so and we will move on.	t know e	enough a	bout the	em to ha	ve an in	npression {5}, just
{ <b>READ NAME</b> .} Do you have a <u>very favorable</u> , unfavorable impression of [ <b>NAME</b> ]?	<u>somewh</u>	<u>at</u> favora	able, son	newhat <u>i</u>	unfavor	able, or <u>very</u>
[RANDOMIZE A-C, THEN REST; SPLIT SAMPLE	ON E1 A	ND E2; F	1 AND F	2]		
	very	some	some	very	no	never
	fav	fav	unfav	unfav	opin	heard
A. Donald Trump	1	2	3	4	5	6
B. Hillary Clinton	1	2	3	4	5	6
C. Barack Obama	1	2	3	4	5	6
D. The Black Lives Matter Movement, which	h seeks	racial ed		nd camr	aigns ag	
and systemic racism toward <b>black</b> people	1	2	3	4	5	6
E1. The Tea Party Movement, which is a co			_			-
LI. The rear arty whovement, which is a ce	1	2	3	4	5	6
F2 The Tee Desty Meyement which is a co	_	_	•	•	•	•
E2. The Tea Party Movement, which is a co			ment w	ithin the	кериы	ican Party that
formed in opposition to the policies of Bar					_	
	1	2	3	4	5	6
F1. The DREAMER Movement, which is a n		•		_	-	
undocumented immigrants	1	2	3	4	5	6
F2. The DREAMER Movement, which is a n	novemer	nt to imp	rove imr	migrant	rights le	d by young
undocumented immigrants, including your	ng [RACE	] immigr	ants			
	1	2	3	4	5	6
Q2.3 [IF CITIZEN = 1] Next, I would like to ask you about your views on politics and the past November elections. Are you currently registered to vote or not?  O Yes, Registered (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE REGISTERED = 1]  O Not Registered (2) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NOTREGISTERED = 1]						

	Not eligible to vote/register (4) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NOTREGISTERED = 1] {DO NOT READ}  Don't Know (88) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NOTREGISTERED = 1]  Refused (99) [HIDDEN VARIABLE NOTREGISTERED = 1]
[HI	ENERATE HIDDEN VARIABLE NONELIG = 0 IF CITIZEN = 1] DDEN VARIABLE NONELIG = 1 IF CITIZEN = 0] DDEN VARIABLE NONELIG = 1 IF CITIZEN = 1 AND Q2.3 = 2, 3, 4, 5, 6]
	.4 [IF NONELIG = 0] Thinking back to this November's presidential elections, did you vote? {READ OICES}
<b>O</b>	Yes (1) [GO TO Q2.4A] [HIDDEN VAR VOTER =1] No (2) [GO TO Q2.6] Don't Know (88) Refused (99)
Hill	AA [IF VOTER=1] Thinking about the past November election for President did you to vote for ary Clinton, Donald Trump, or some other candidate?  Clinton (1)  Trump (2)  Gary Johnson (3)  Jill Stein (4)  Some other candidate (5)  Don't know (88)  Refused (99)
the aro	.6 [IF CITIZEN = 1] As you know, the political parties try to talk to as many people as they can to get am to vote for their candidate. Did anyone from one of the political parties call you up or come and talk to you about the campaign this year?  Yes (1)  No (2)  Don't Know (88)  Refused (99)
cor O O	.7 [IF CITIZEN = 1] Other than someone from the two major parties, did anyone else call you up or ne around and talk to you about this election? Yes (1) No (2) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)
	.8 [IF Q2.7 =1] Was that contact by an ethnic organization or some other organization? {CHECK ALL AT APPLY}  O Ethnic organization (1)  O Some other organization (2)  O Don't Know (88)

O Refused (99)

# [Q2.9 and Q2.10 ASKED FOR CALIFORNIA RESIDENTS ONLY & HALFALL = 1]

Q2.9 [IF STATE = "CA" and VOTER=1] In California, Proposition 55 was called the "Tax Extension to Fund Education and Healthcare. Initiative Constitutional Amendment." It extends by 12 years the temporary personal income tax increases enacted in 2012 on earnings over \$250,000, with revenues allocated to K–12 schools, California Community Colleges, and, in certain years, healthcare. Did you vote yes or no composition 55?	
<ul> <li>Yes (1)</li> <li>No (2)</li> <li>I did not vote on this issue (3)</li> <li>Don't Know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>	
Q2.10 [IF STATE = "CA" and VOTER=1 & HALFALL = 1] In California, Proposition 64 was called the "Marijuana Legalization. Initiative Statute." It legalizes marijuana under state law, for use by adults 21 colder and imposes state taxes on sales and cultivation. It also provides for industry licensing and establishes standards for marijuana products and allows local regulation and taxation. Did you vote yes or no on Proposition 64?	
<ul> <li>Yes (1)</li> <li>No (2)</li> <li>I did not vote on this issue (3)</li> <li>Don't Know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>	
[FOR 50% OF THE SAMPLE, THESE QUESTIONS APPEAR HERE; FOR THE OTHER 50%, THEY APPEAR AT THE START OF MODULE 10]	
Q2.11A. Generally speaking, do you usually think of yourself as a {READ CATEGORIES}, an independent, or in terms of some other party? [ROTATE 1 AND 2]  Democrat (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}  Republican (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}  Independent (3)  Other party (please specify) (4) {WRITE IN ENGLISH}  Do not think in terms of political parties (5) (VOL; DO NOT READ)  DON'T KNOW(88)  Refused (99)	•
Q2.11B. [IF Q2.11A = 2] Would you call yourself a strong Republican or a not very strong Republican?  Strong Republican (1)  Not very strong Republican (2)  DON'T KNOW(88)  Refused (99)	

Q2.11C. [IF Q2.11A = 1]\_Would you call yourself a strong Democrat or a not very strong Democrat?

$\mathbf{O}$	Strong Democrat (1)
	Not very strong Democrat (2)
$\mathbf{C}$	DON'T KNOW(88)
O	Refused (99)
[SP	PLIT SAMPLE Q2.11D AND Q2.11E]
Q2	.11D [IF Q2.11A = 3,4,5,88,99] Do you think of yourself as closer to the Republican Party or to the
De	mocratic Party?
$\mathbf{O}$	Closer to the Republican Party (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}
$\mathbf{O}$	Closer to the Democratic party (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Closer to neither party (3) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
$\mathbf{O}$	Don't Know (88) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
0	Refused (99) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
Q2	.11E [IF Q2.11A = 3,4,5,88,99] Based on where the two parties stand on the issues, do you think you
vie	ws are closer to the Republican Party or to the Democratic Party?
$\mathbf{O}$	Closer to the Republican Party (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}
$\mathbf{O}$	Closer to the Democratic party (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Closer to neither party (3) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
$\mathbf{O}$	Don't Know (88) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
$\mathbf{O}$	Refused (99) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}

#### **MODULE 3: ECONOMIC SECURITY AND INEQUALITY**

#### [TIMER]

- Q3.1 For the each of the following statements, please indicate if you agree strongly, agree somewhat, neither agree nor disagree, disagree somewhat, or disagree strongly.
  - Q3.1a Our society should do whatever is necessary to make sure that everyone has an equal opportunity to succeed.
  - Q3.1b We have gone too far in pushing equal rights in this country.
  - Q3.1c One of the big problems in this country is that we don't give everyone an equal chance.
  - Q3.1d This country would be better off if we worried less about how equal people are.
  - Q3.1e It is not really that big a problem if some people have more of a chance in life than others.
  - Q3.1f If people were treated more equally in this country we would have many fewer problems.

[ROTATE between Q3.1a to Q3.1f]

Strongly agree 1
Somewhat agree 2
Neither 3
Somewhat disagree 4
Strongly disagree 5
DK 88
REF 99

#### [TIMER]

Q3.3 What about income inequality? Do you think the difference in incomes between rich people and poor people in the United States today is larger, smaller, or about the same as it was 20 years ago? Is it much larger or somewhat larger? Is it much smaller or somewhat smaller?

1
2
3
4
5
88
99

#### [TIMER]

Q3.4 How about your own financial situation? So far as you and your family are concerned, how worried are you about your current financial situation? Are you {READ} [ROTATE ORDER OF RESPONSE CATEGORIES FROM 1-5 AND 5-1]

Extremely worried	1
Very worried	2

Moderately worried	3
A little worried	4
Not at all worried	5
DK	88
REF	99

Q3.5 Now looking ahead, do you think that a year from now [you / you and your family living here] will be BETTER OFF financially, WORSE OFF, or JUST ABOUT THE SAME as now? Is that MUCH better or SOMEWHAT better? Is that MUCH worse or SOMEWHAT worse?

1
2
3
4
5
88
99

[FLIP order of categories 1 to 4 above]

- Q3.6 This set of items ask about the role of the U.S. federal government in the economy and your views on policies related to the economy and inequality. For each statement below, please indicate whether you strongly agree, somewhat agree, neither agree nor disagree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree:
  - Q3.6a The federal government should do more to reduce income differences between the richest and the poorest households.
  - Q3.6b The federal government should do more to regulate banks.
  - Q3.6c The federal government should raise the minimum wage to allow every working American a decent standard of living.
  - Q.3.6d The federal government should increase income taxes on people making over a million dollars a year.
  - Q3.6f The federal government should do more to discourage big American companies from hiring foreign workers to replace workers in the U.S.
  - Q3.6g The federal government should enact major new spending that would help undergraduates pay tuition at public colleges without needing loans.

Strongly agree 1
Somewhat agree 2
Neither 3
Somewhat disagree 4
Strongly disagree 5
DK 88
REF 99

# **MODULE 4: IDENTITY AND RACIAL GROUP FORMATION**

Q4.1 [IF RACE = ASIAN] People of Asian descent in the U.S. use different terms to describe themselves. In general do you think of yourself as [RANDOMIZE ORDER OF FIRST FOUR CHOICE CATEGORIES] [CHECK ALL THAT APPLY]  Asian American (1)  [REthnic](2)  [REthnic] American (3)  Asian (4)  American (5)  Other [DO NOT READ] (6)  None of these [DO NOT READ] (7)  Don't know (88)  Refused (99)
Q4.2 For the next few questions, we want to know about what is important to how you think about yourself. Would you say extremely important, very important, somewhat important, or not at all important?
Q4.2a How important is being [RACE] to your identity? Q4.2b [R=ASIAN OR LATINO] How important is being [RETHNIC] to your identity? Q4.2c How important is being [GENDER] to your identity? Q4.2d How important is being [AMERICAN] to your identity? Q4.2e How important is your religion to your identity?
[IF R = SOUTH ASIAN] Q4.2f How important is your caste to your identity?
<ul> <li>Extremely important (1)</li> <li>Very important (2)</li> <li>Somewhat important (3)</li> <li>Not at all important (4)</li> <li>Don't know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>
[ROTATE ORDER OF 4.3 AND 4.4] Q4.3 Do you think what happens generally to other [RACES] in this country affects what happens in your life? [MARK "MAYBE", "SOMEWHAT", "A LITTLE", "SORT OF" AS YES]  O Yes (1) O No (2) O Don't know (88) O Refused (99)
Q4.3A [IF 4.3 ="Yes"] Will it affect you a lot, some, or not very much?  O A lot (1) O Some (2)

O	Not very much (3)
$\mathbf{O}$	Don't know (88)
O	Refused (99)
Q4.4	[R = ASIAN OR LATINO ONLY] Do you think what happens generally to other [R ETHNIC]
Americ	ans affects what happens in your life? [MARK "MAYBE", "SOMEWHAT", "A LITTLE", "SORT OF" AS
YES]	and arrests what happens in your mer (white with be ) down that , we have a re-
-	Yes (1)
	No (2)
	Don't know (88)
3	Refused (99)
Q4.4A	[If 4.3 = "Yes] Will it affect you a lot, some, or not very much?
$\mathbf{C}$	A lot (1)
0	Some (2)
	Not very much (3)
	Don't know (88)
	Refused (99)
•	Neruseu (55)
Q4.5	"What, if anything do [RACES] in the United States share with one another? Would you say they
snare	. [RANDOMIZE ORDER OF Q4.5A-Q4.5D]
Q4.5A	A common race
O	Yes (1)
•	No (2)
O	Don't know (88)
	Refused (99)
∩4 5R	A common culture
•	Yes (1)
	No (2)
	Don't know (88)
0	Refused (99)
Q4.5C	Common economic interests
•	Yes (1)
	No (2)
	Don't know (88)
	Refused (99)
O4 5D	Common political interests
	·
	Yes (1)
	No (2)
	Don't know (88)
$\mathbf{O}$	Refused (99)

have a	lot in co <b>T FIRST</b> (	mmon,	some, li <b>PRY, BAS</b>	ttle in co SED ON (	ommon, CATEGO	or nothi	ng at all DOMIZA	in common with	n, would you say [RACES] n AN AMERICANS OR OT INSERT SAME RACIAL
GROUP	AS R1								
	A lot in	commo	n						
		COMMING	ווע						
	Some								
0	Little								
O	Nothin	g at all i	n comm	on					
O	Don't k	now							
	Refuse								
•	itterase	u							
O4 6B	⊔o.u. ok	out [CE	COND	ATECO	<b>2V1</b> 2 \\/a	براط برمیر	cay [DA <i>t</i>	CECI have a let in	common como little in
		_			_	-		=	common, some, little in
		_		mmon <sub>l</sub>	politicall	y with [ <b>(</b>	CATEGO	RY 2J?	
0	A lot in	commo	on						
$\mathbf{O}$	Some								
O	Little								
		σ at all i	n comm	on					
	Don't k	_	ii commi	OII					
3	Refuse	d							
		_					_	Would you say   politically with [6	[RACES] have a lot in CATEGORY 3]?
0	A lot in	commo	n						
O	Some								
	Little								
		_	n comm	on					
	Don't k								
0	Refuse	d							
[SPLIT S	SAMPLE	Q4.8 aı	nd Q4.9]	l					
Q4.8	On a sc	ale fron	n 1 to 7,	where 1	L is lazy a	and 7 is l	hard wo	rking, how would	d you rate the following
groups	?-[R will	be aske	d 4.8A	through	4.8D (R	ANDOM	CHOICE	OF 1 CATEGOR	Y WITHIN EACH
	-			_	-				SAME RANDOM
			A-Q4.7D		8. 0.	ups 11 011		to choose; [REE	
JLLLCI	ION AS	IIV Q4.7	H-Q4.7L	<b>'</b> J					
0.404	<b>.</b>	114	,,						
			ns/Japa						
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
Q4.8B	Indians	/Pakista	nis/Ban	gladesh	is				
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
•	1	۷	3	7	,	U	,	DOILCKHOW	Refuseu
04.00	F:11:	- /\ /: - + ·-		S ls l3					
	-			Cambodi					
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
Q4.8D	Hispan	ics/Latir	nos						
•	-	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
-									

Whites								
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
Blacks								
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
	1 Blacks	Blacks	1 2 3 Blacks	1 2 3 4 Blacks	1 2 3 4 5 Blacks	1 2 3 4 5 6 Blacks	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Blacks	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Don't know  Blacks

Q4.9 On a scale from 1 to 7, where 1 is unintelligent and 7 is intelligent, how would you rate the following groups? [KEEP SAME RANDOM SELECTION AS IN Q4.8A-Q4.8D]

Q 4.9A	Chinese/Koreans/Japanese										
•	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.9B	<u>I</u> ndians	/Pakista	nis/Ban	gladeshi	s						
•	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.9C	Filipino	s/Vietna	amese/C	ambodia	ans						
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.9D	Hispani	cs/Latin	os								
O	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.9E	Whites										
O	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.9F	Blacks										
•	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		

# [SPLIT SAMPLE 4.10 and 4.11]

Q4.10 On a scale from 1 to 7, where 1 is difficult to get along with and 7 is easy to get along with, how would you rate the following groups? **[KEEP SAME RANDOM SELECTION AS IN Q4.8A-Q4.8D]** 

Q 4.10A	Chine	Chinese/Koreans/Japanese										
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused				
Q4.810B	<u>I</u> ndiar	ns/Pakis	stanis/B	anglades	shis							
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused				
Q4.10C	Filipin	os/Viet	namese	e/Cambo	dians							
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused				
Q4.10D	Hispa	nics/Lat	tinos									
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused				
Q4.10E	White	es										

O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused
Q4.10F	Black	(S						
<b>O</b> 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused

Q4.11 On a scale from 1 to 7, where 1 is prone to violence and 7 is peaceful, how would you rate the following groups? [KEEP SAME RANDOM SELECTION AS IN Q4.8a-Q4.8d]

Q 4.11A	Chinese/Koreans/Japanese									
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.11B	<u>I</u> ndia	ns/Pakis	stanis/Ba	anglades	shis					
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.11C	Filipi	nos/Viet	tnamese	:/Cambo	dians					
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.11D	Hispa	anics/La	tinos							
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.11E	Whit	es								
O 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		
Q4.11F	Black	<b>(S</b>								
<b>O</b> 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Don't know	Refused		

#### **MODULE 5: DISCRIMINATION**

- Q5.1 In the following questions, we are interested in the way you have been treated in your day to day encounters with strangers in the United States. In an average month, do any of the following things happen to you?
  - Q5.1b You receive poorer service than other people at restaurants or stores.
  - Q5.1c. People act as if you don't speak English.
  - Q5.1d People act as if they are afraid of you.
  - Q5.1e People act as if they think you are dishonest.
  - Q5.1g You are called names or insulted.
  - Q5.1h You are threatened or harassed.
  - Q5.1i People mispronounce your name.

#### [ROTATE]

- Q5.1j People assume you are good at math and science.
- Q5.1k People assume you are not a creative thinker
- **O** Yes (1)
- O No (9)
- O Don't know (88)
- O Refused (99)
- Q5.2 Next, we would like to ask about important ways that some people have been treated poorly or unfairly. **[RANDOMIZE]** 
  - Q5.2a Have you ever been unfairly denied a promotion?
  - Q5.2b Have you ever been unfairly fired from a job?
  - Q5.2c For unfair reasons, do you think you have ever not been hired for a job?
  - Q5.2d Have you ever been unfairly stopped, searched, questioned, physically threatened or abused by the police?
  - Q5.2e Do you think you have ever been unfairly prevented from moving into a neighborhood because the landlord or a realtor refused to sell or rent you a house or apartment?
  - Q5.2f Have you ever moved into a neighborhood where neighbors made life difficult for you or your family?
  - Q5.2g [IF SOUTHASIAN = 1] Have you ever been denied entry into a religious institution?
- Q5.3 **[IF Q5.2A-E]** What do you think are the <u>main</u> reasons for why you have been treated unfairly? Please say yes if any of the following apply: **[Check all that apply]** 
  - Your Race or Ethnicity (1)
  - Your Religion (2)
  - Your Gender (3)
  - Your Age (4)
  - Your Sexual Orientation (5)

- Something else (6) {DO NOT READ OPTIONS BELOW, BUT MARK}
- [IF INDIAN, PAKISTANI, BANGLADESHI, SOUTH ASIAN = 1] Your caste (11)

## **DO NOT READ**

- Your income level or social class (8)
- Your accent (9)
- o Your name (10)
- o OTHER \_\_\_\_\_(11)

#### [On each above]

- o Yes (1)
- o No (2)
- o Don't know (88)
- o Refused (99)

Q5.4 [IF MORE THAN ONE YES RESPONSE IN Q5.3; DISPLAY ONLY ITEMS WHERE Q5.4 = YES] What would you say is the <u>most important</u> reason why you have been treated unfairly? {READ ONLY IF RESPONDENT ASKS} [ACCEPT ONLY ONE ANSWER, FIRST MENTION]

- Your Race or Ethnicity (1)
- Your Religion (2)
- Your Gender (3)
- o Your Age (4)
- Your Sexual Orientation (5)
- [IF INDIAN, PAKISTANI, BANGLADESHI, SOUTH ASIAN = 1] Your caste (11)

#### DO NOT READ

- o Your income level or social class (8)
- Your accent (9)
- o Your name (10)
- o Other Specify in Q5.3

#### [On each above]

- o Yes (1)
- o No (2)
- o Don't know (88)
- o Refused (99)

Q5.5 Next, we have some additional questions about how you may have been treated. [GROUP A AND B; GROUP C AND D; ROTATE WITHIN PAIR AND ACROSS PAIRS]

Q5.5A [ASK IF RACE = ASIAN OR LATINO OR BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN] Have you ever been encouraged to Americanize or Whiten your name?

Q5.5B [ASK IF RACE = ASIAN OR LATINO] Have you ever been encouraged to retain a native language? Q5.5C Have you ever been unfairly discouraged by a teacher or advisor from continuing your education? Q5.5D Have you ever been encouraged by a teacher or advisor to continue your education? **O** Yes (1) O No (2) O Don't know (88) O Refused (99) Q5.6 [IF HALFALL = 1] [IF R=ASIAN, LATINO, BLACK] Did your parents or other family members ever tell you that you have to be better than white Americans to get as far as white Americans in life? **O** Yes (1) O No (2) O Don't know (88) O Refused (99) Q5.7 Next, here are some issues other people have mentioned as challenges they face. Please tell me

how serious of a problem each is for you and your family: Not at all serious, not very serious, fairly serious, or very serious. [RANDOMLY CHOOSE SIX] [RANDOMIZE APPEARANCE OF CATEGORIES]

- Q5.7A The long time it takes for people to get visas.
- Q5.7B The quality of children's schools.
- Q5.7C Getting bullied in school.
- Q5.7D The affordability of college.
- Q5.7E The cost of taking care of elderly.
- Q5.7F The cost of medical care.
- Q5.7G Being able to pay the rent or mortgage.
- Q5.7H College debt or student loans.
- Q5.7I Medical debt
- Q5.7J Credit card debt
- Q5.7K The cost of child care
- Q5.7L Not having enough saved for retirement

#### [SPLIT SAMPLE OF Q5.8A AND Q5.8B; DIFFERENT INTROS SAME QUESTION CHOICE]

Q5.8A. Next, we have some questions about immigration policy. Please indicate how much you agree or disagree with the following statements. **{PROBE: Would you agree/disagree strongly or somewhat?}** 

Q5.8B. Next, we have some questions about immigration policy. As you may know, Asians are the fastest growing population of undocumented immigrants, with nearly 1.5 million Asian undocumented immigrants in the United States today.

# Please indicate how much you agree or disagree with the following statements. **PROBE: Would you say you strongly or somewhat?** [RANDOMIZE APPEARANCE OF STATEMENTS]

	Strongly	Somewhat	Neither	Somewhat	Strongly	Don't	Refused
	disagree	disagree	agree	agree	agree	know	
			nor				
			disagree				
1. Undocumented or							
illegal immigrants should be allowed to have an							
opportunity to							
eventually become U.S.							
citizens							
2. Congress needs to							
increase the number of							
work visas it issues every							
year							
2 Congress poods to							
3. Congress needs to increase the number of							
family visas it issues							
every year							
, ,							
4. States should provide							
driver's licenses to all							
residents, regardless of							
their immigration status							

#### **MODULE 6: INTERGROUP CONTACT**

Q.6.1 In your daily life, how much contact do you, personally, have with people who are...

# [SET UP AS A GRID; RANDOMIZE A,B,C,D BELOW]

- Q6.1A White
- Q6.1B Hispanic or Latino
- Q6.1C Black or African American
- Q6.1D Asian or Asian-American
  - A lot of contact (4)
  - O Some contact (3)
  - Only a little contact (2)
  - O No contact at all (1)
  - O Don't know (88)
  - O Refused (99)

## **MODULE 7: AFFIRMATIVE ACTION**

# [SPLIT SAMPLE BETWEEN Q7.1A, B, C]

and prodiscrim promot O O O	Some people say that because of past discrimination, <u>blacks</u> should be given preference in hiring smotion. Others say that such preference in hiring and promotion of blacks is wrong because it inates <u>against whites</u> . What about your opinion are you for or against preferential hiring and ion of blacks?  For  Against  No opinion (Do not read)  Refused
should promot What a O O	Some people say that because of past discrimination, groups like <a href="blacks and Asian Americans">blacks and Asian Americans</a> be given preference in hiring and promotion. Others say that such preference in hiring and ion of groups like blacks and Asian Americans is wrong because it discriminates <a href="against whites">against whites</a> . bout your opinion are you for or against preferential hiring and promotion of blacks? For Against  No opinion (Do not read)  Refused
and prodiscrim against O	Some people say that because of past discrimination, <u>blacks</u> should be given preference in hiring smotion. Others say that such preference in hiring and promotion of blacks is wrong because it inates <u>against groups like whites and Asian Americans</u> . What about your opinion are you for or preferential hiring and promotion of blacks?  For  Against No opinion (Do not read)  Refused
because hiring a O O	Some people say that because of past discrimination, women should be given preference in nd promotion. Others say that such preference in hiring and promotion of women is wrong it discriminates against men. What about your opinion - are you for or against preferential nd promotion of women?  For  Against  No opinion (Do not read)  Refused

#### [ONE-QUARTER SPLIT SAMPLE OF Q7.3A-Q7.3D]

O Strongly favor (5)

Q7.3A Next, thinking about colleges and universities. Do you favor, oppose, or neither favor nor oppose allowing universities to <u>increase the number of black students</u> studying at their schools by considering race along with other factors when choosing students? **{Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?}** 

Q7.3B Next, thinking about colleges and universities. Do you favor, oppose, or neither favor nor oppose allowing universities to <u>increase the number of black and some Asian American students</u> studying at their schools by considering race along with other factors when choosing students? **{Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?}** 

Q7.3C Next, thinking about colleges and universities. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that it is legal for universities to consider race along with other factors in choosing students. Do you favor, oppose, or neither favor nor oppose allowing universities to <u>increase the number of black students</u> studying at their schools by considering race along with other factors when choosing students? **{Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?}** 

Q7.3D Next, thinking about colleges and universities. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that it is legal for universities to consider race along with other factors in choosing students. Do you favor, oppose, or neither favor nor oppose allowing universities to increase the number of black and some Asian American students studying at their schools by considering race along with other factors when choosing students? {Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?}

0	Favor (4)
$\mathbf{O}$	Neither favor nor oppose (3)
$\mathbf{O}$	Oppose (2)
$\mathbf{O}$	Strongly oppose (1)
$\mathbf{O}$	DK (88)
O	REF (99)
ſΟI	NE-THIRD SPLIT SAMPLE OF Q7.5-Q7.7]
Q7	.5 Thinking about the cost of health care, has the Affordable Care Act or Obamacare increased, creased, or had no effect on the cost of health care for you and your family?
0	Increased (3)
	Decreased (1)
	No effect (2)
$\mathbf{O}$	Don't know (88)
O	Refused (99)
Q7 de	.6 Thinking next about access to health care, has the Affordable Care Act or Obamacare increased, creased, or had no effect on access to health care for you and your family?
<u></u>	and your runny.
O	Increased (3)
0	Decreased (1)

O No effect (2) O Don't know (88) O Refused (99)
Q7.7 And thinking about quality of health care, has the Affordable Care Act or Obamacare increased, decreased, or had no effect on the quality of health care for you and your family?
<ul> <li>Increased (3)</li> <li>Decreased (1)</li> <li>No effect (2)</li> <li>Don't know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>
Q7.8 Next, thinking about affirmative action programs: Have you, a close relative or close personal friend ever <u>successfully benefited from a job offer or a government contract</u> due to an affirmative action program?
<ul> <li>Yes (1)</li> <li>No (2)</li> <li>Don't know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>
Q7.9 Have you, a close relative or close personal friend ever been <u>passed over for a job offer or a government contract</u> due to an affirmative action program?
<ul> <li>Yes (1)</li> <li>No (2)</li> <li>Don't know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>
Q7.10 Have you, a close relative or close personal friend ever <u>benefited by being admitted to a selective college or university</u> due to an affirmative action program?
<ul> <li>Yes (1)</li> <li>No (2)</li> <li>Don't know (88)</li> <li>Refused (99)</li> </ul>
Q7.11 Have you, a close relative or close personal friend ever been <u>passed over for admissions to a selective college or university</u> due to an affirmative action program?
<ul><li>Yes (1)</li><li>No (2)</li><li>Don't know (88)</li></ul>

# O Refused (99)

Q7. 12 Now I am going to read you a list of different groups. After I say each one, please tell me if you think the group is very likely to be Asian or Asian American, somewhat likely, or not likely to be Asian or Asian American.

# [RANDOMIZE ORDER OF RESPONSES]

- a. Chinese
- b. Korean
- c. Japanese
- d. Indian
- e. Filipino
- f. Indian
- g. Pakistani
- h. Arabs or Middle Eastern people

# [For each of the above]

- Very Likely (1)
- Somewhat Likely (2)
- o Not Likely (3)
- o Don't know (88)
- o Refused (99)

# **MODULE 8: LGBTQ**

# [SPLIT Q8.1A AND Q8.1B]

fav O O O O	1A Next, we have some questions about society in general. Do you favor or oppose legal stections against discrimination against gay, lesbian and transgender people? (Probe: Do you strongly or/oppose?)  Strongly favor (5)  Favor (4)  Neither favor nor oppose (3)  Oppose (2)  Strongly oppose (1)  DK (88)  REF (99)
pro O O O	Next, we have some questions about society in general. Do you <u>favor</u> or <u>oppose</u> legal stections against discrimination against gays and lesbians? (Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?) Strongly favor (5) Favor (4) Neither favor nor oppose (3) Oppose (2) Strongly oppose (1) DK (88) REF (99)
as t	.1C Do you <u>favor</u> or <u>oppose</u> allowing transgender people – that is, people who identify themselves the sex or gender different from the one they were born as – to use the bathrooms of their identified order. (Probe: Do you strongly favor/oppose?)
0 0 0	Strongly favor (5) Favor (4) Neither favor nor oppose (3) Oppose (2) Strongly oppose (1) DK (88) REF (99)

## **MODULE 9: REPRO**

# [SPLIT Q9.1A AND Q9.1B]

Q9.1A Now we have some questions about issues in society. Remember that there is no right or wrong answers. We just want to know what you think.

0 0 0 0	ich comes closest to your views on abortion? Abortion should always be legal, (1) Abortion should be legal most of the time, (2) Abortion should be legal only in cases of rape, incest, and to protect the life of the mother, (3) Abortion should be illegal in all cases. (4) DK (88) REF (99)
Q9.	1B Which comes closest to your views on abortion?
<b>O</b>	Abortion should not be legal under any circumstances, even if the mother's life is in danger. (1) Abortion should only be legal in certain circumstances, such as when a woman's health is endangered or when pregnancy results from rape or incest. (2) Abortion should be legal during the first three months of pregnancy, no matter what the reason. (3) Abortion should be legal under any circumstance. (4) DK (88) REF (99)

## **MODULE 10: DEMOGRAPHICS**

# [FOR 50% OF THE SAMPLE, THESE QUESTIONS APPEAR HERE; FOR THE OTHER 50%, THEY APPEAR AT THE END OF MODULE 2]

	U.UA Generally speaking, do you usually think of yourself as a { <b>READ CATEGORIES</b> }, an independent,
	in terms of some other party? [ROTATE 1 AND 2]
	Democrat (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Republican (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}
	Independent (3)
	Other party (please specify) (4) {WRITE IN ENGLISH}
	Do not think in terms of political parties (5) (VOL; DO NOT READ)
	DON'T KNOW(88)
0	Refused (99)
Q1	0.0B. [IF Q10.0A = 2] Would you call yourself a strong Republican or a not very strong Republican?
	Strong Republican (1)
	Not very strong Republican (2)
	DON'T KNOW(88)
	Refused (99)
Ω1	0.0C. [IF Q10.0A = 1] Would you call yourself a strong Democrat or a not very strong Democrat?
	Strong Democrat (1)
	Not very strong Democrat (2)
	DON'T KNOW(88)
	Refused (99)
•	Neruseu (55)
ſÇD	PLIT SAMPLE Q10.0D AND Q10.0E]
-	0.0D [IF Q10.0A = 3,4,5,88,99] Do you think of yourself as closer to the Republican Party or to the
	mocratic Party?
	Closer to the Republican Party (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}
	Closer to the Democratic party (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Closer to neither party (3) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Don't Know (88) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
	Refused (99) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
•	Refused (99) (HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT)
	0.0E <b>[IF <u>Q10.0A</u> = 3,4,5,88,99]</b> Based on where the two parties stand on the issues, do you think your
	ws are closer to the Republican Party or to the Democratic Party?
	Closer to the Republican Party (1) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = REPUBLICAN}
	Closer to the Democratic party (2) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = DEMOCRAT}
	Closer to neither party (3) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
	Don't Know (88) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}
0	Refused (99) {HIDDEN VARIABLE PID4 = INDEPENDENT}

following currently live with you:
<ul> <li>No one, live alone (1)</li> <li>Spouse or partner (2)</li> <li>Children under 18 (3)</li> <li>Children 18 or older (4)</li> <li>Parents or Parents in-law (5)</li> <li>Grandchildren (6)</li> <li>Grandparent (7)</li> <li>Anyone else (Specify)</li></ul>
Q10.2A [IF FORBORN=1] Did you complete all of your education in the United States?  Yes (1)  No (2)  Don't Know (88)  Refused (99)
Q10.2B [IF 108.2A=2] What is the highest level of education you completed outside the United States?  No schooling completed (1)  Some schooling, no high school degree (2)  High school degree or certificate (3)  College degree or Bachelor's degree (5)  Graduate or Professional degree(6)  Don't Know (88)  Refused (99)
Q10.2C [IF CITIZEN = 0 AND NATURALIZED = 0] And as far as you know, is your visa or green card current, or do you think it might have expired?  O Visa or green card is current (1)  O Visa or green card might have expired (2)  O No visa or green card (3)  O Person says they are a U.S. citizen (4)  O Don't know (88)  O Refused (99)
Q10.3A [IF FORBORN=1] What year did you first come to live in the United States? (RECORD YEAR) Q10.3B [IF TAKING TOO LONG, How old were you when you first came to live in the United States?] {RECORD AGE}
Q10.3C [IF FORBORN = 1] What is the city and state you lived when you first came to the United States? {IF THEY DON'T REMEMBER THE CITY, JUST ASK FOR STATE}
Enter City Choose State [FROM LIST, SEE S9A]

Q10.1 Finally, we have a few important questions about home and family. Please indicate if any of the

Q10.3D [IF FORBORN = 0] What is the city and state you lived when you were 16 years old? {IF THEY **DON'T REMEMBER THE CITY, JUST ASK FOR STATE** Enter City \_\_\_\_\_ Choose State [FROM LIST, SEE S9A] Q10.4A Are you currently married or living as married with someone – or are you widowed, divorced, separated, or have you never been married? O Married / living as married (1) O Widowed (2) O Divorced (3) O Separated (4) O Never married (5) O Other (6) \_\_\_\_\_\_ {WRITE IN ENGLISH} O Don't Know (88) O Refused (99) Q10.4B [IF Q10.4A=2,3,4,5,6,88] Are you currently in a serious relationship? **O** Yes (1) O No (2) O Don't Know (88) O Refused (99) Q10.5 [IF Q10.4A=1 or Q10.4B=1] What racial or ethnic groups describe your spouse or partner? {Choose all that apply} [SAME RESPONSE CHOICES AS \$10.2] **O** White (3) **O** Black (4) O African American (5) O Hispanic or Latino (6) • Asian or Asian American (1) O Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (2) O Native American or American Indian (7) • Multi-racial, Mixed (9) O Don't Know (88) O Refused (99) Q10.6 How would you rate your overall health in the past year – excellent, very good, good, fair, or poor? O Excellent (1) O Very Good (2) **O** Good (3) **O** Fair (4) **O** Poor (5) O Don't Know (88)

O Refused (99)

Q1	0.7 [IF CITIZEN = 0 AND NATURALIZED = 0] Do you have a current, valid driver's license from the state
of (	California or from any other state in the United States?
0	Yes, license from California (1)
	Yes, license from some other state (2)
	No current driver's license (3)
	Don't Know (88)
	Refused (99)
Q1	0.9 Next, we have some questions about work. What is your current employment status? Please let
us	know which of the following best describes your status in the past month. [TWO COLUMNS] {READ
CH	OICES} [ACCEPT MULTIPLE ANSWERS]
0	Working full-time (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE EMPLOYED = 1]
O	Working part-time (2) [HIDDEN VARIABLE EMPLOYED = 1]
O	Self-employed (3) [HIDDEN VARIABLE EMPLOYED = 1]
O	Unemployed and still looking for work (4)
0	Unemployed and stopped looking for work (5)
O	Student (6)
O	Homemaker (7)
O	Retired (8)
$\mathbf{O}$	Permanently disabled (9)
$\mathbf{O}$	Other [SPECIFY] (10 {WRITE IN ENGLISH}
O	Don't Know (88)
$\mathbf{O}$	Refused (99)
Q1	0.10 [IF Q10.9 = 10, DK, REF] Are you doing any work for pay at the present time?
0	Yes (1) [HIDDEN VARIABLE EMPLOYED = 1]
O	No (2)
0	Don't Know (88)
0	Refused (99)
Q1	0.15 For statistical purposes only, which of the following best describes the total income earned by
eve	eryone in your household last year? [TRY HARD TO NOT ACCEPT DK, REF; REASSURE THAT
<u>AN</u>	ONYMOUS]
$\mathbf{O}$	Up to \$20,000 (1)
	\$20,000 to \$50,000 (2)
$\mathbf{O}$	\$50,000 to \$75,000 (3)
$\mathbf{O}$	\$75,000 to \$100,000 (4)
O	\$100,000 to \$125,000 (5)
$\mathbf{O}$	\$125,000 to \$250,000 (6)
O	\$250,000 and over (7)
$\mathbf{O}$	Don't Know (88)
O	Refused (99)

Q10.16 [IF Q10.15=DK, REF] We understand this is a private matter for many individuals. We are only interested in this for research purposes. Could you please at least tell us if your total household income was below \$50,000 last year, between \$50,000 and \$100,000, or more than \$100,000?  O less than \$50,000 (1)  O \$50,000 to \$100,000 (2)  O more than \$100,000 (3)  O Don't Know (88)  O Refused (99)
Q10.17 [IF EMPLOYED = 1] Do you belong to a union?  O Yes (1) O No (2) O Don't Know (88) O Refused (99)
Q10.18 And what year were you born? [TRY HARD TO NOT ACCEPT DK, REF; REASSURE THAT ANONYMOUS] [RECORD YEAR ]
[TWO COLUMNS] [RECORD YEAR] {YEAR BORN} O Don't Know (8888) Refused (9999)
Q10.19 [IF Q10.18=DK, REF] We just need to know in general; are you the following age groups?  18-24 (1) 25 to 34 (2) 35 to 49 (3) 50 to 64 (4) 65 or over (5) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)
Q10.20 Do you own or do you rent the place where you currently live?  Own (1)  Rent (2)  Don't Know (88)  Refused (99)
Q10.21 What is your present religion, if any? [RECORD CURRENT RELIGION. IF RESPONDENT SAYS I WAS RAISED CATHOLIC, BUT AM NOW EPISCOPALIAN, RECORD EPISCOPALIAN. PROBE OR READ LIST AS NEEDED] [TWO COLUMNS]
<ul> <li>African Methodist Episcopal/ AME (32)</li> <li>Agnostic (1)</li> <li>Atheist (2)</li> <li>Baptist (3)</li> <li>Buddhist (4)</li> </ul>

0000	Catholic (5) Christian (6) Christian Scientists (7) Church of God in Christ (8) Church of the Nazarene (9) Congregationalist (includes United Church of Christ) (10) Disciples of Christ, Churches of Christ (11)
O O	Episcopalian, Anglican (12) Falun Gong (13) Greek Orthodox (14) Hindu (15)
00000000000000	Jain (16) Jehovah's Witnesses (17) Jewish (18) Lutheran (19) Methodist (20) Mormon, Church of the Latter Day Saints (21) Muslim, Mohammedan, Islam (22) Orthodox, Eastern Orthodox (23) Pentecostal (24) Presbyterian (25) Protestant (no denomination given) (26) Reformed, Dutch Reformed, Christian Reformed (27) Seventh Day Adventist (28) Sikh (29) Unitarian, Universalist (30) Other Non-Christian [SPECIFY] (31) {ENTER IN ENGLISH}
<b>O</b>	No religion (VOL, DO NOT READ) (77) Spiritual, but not religious (VOL, DO NOT READ) (78) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)
[HI]	DDEN VARIABLE RELIGIOUS = 1 IF Q10.21 = 3 thru 32]→ DDEN VARIABLE RELIGION = Q10.21 = 3 thru 32] DDEN VARIABLE ALLCHRISTIAN = 1 IF Q10.21=3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 30, 32, 78]
	0.22 <b>[IF ALLCHRISTIAN]</b> Would you describe yourself as any of the following [READ: "A damentalist or evangelical Christian, a born again Christian, or Charismatic"]?
<b>O</b>	Yes (1) No (2) Don't Know (88) Refused (99)

Q1	0.23 [IF RELIGIOUS=1] How often do you attend a place of worship? {READ CHOICES}
00000	More than once a week (1) Once a week (2) Once or twice a month (3) A few times a year (4) Seldom (5) Never (6) [] Don't Know (88) [] Refused (99) []
[IF	HALFALL=1]
bes wh sor of bla of	MER] [SPLIT A] In describing our background, we often ask someone which racial or ethnic groups st describes them. Imagine if we used instead a 10 point system where points are allocated to nichever racial or ethnic groups we think accurately describes a person. For example, if you think of meone as just African American, you would allocate all 10 points to African American. Or if you think someone as mixed race, but more African American than white, you might allocate 6 or 7 points to ack and 3 or 4 points to white. Now think of your own background in racial and ethnic terms. In terms being Asian American, Pacific Islander, white, black, Latino, and Native American, how would you scribe your race and ethnicity using this 10-point system?
	<ul> <li>Number of points Asian American</li> <li>Number of points Pacific Islander</li> <li>Number of points White</li> <li>Number of points Black or African American</li> <li>Number of points Latino or Hispanic</li> <li>Number of points Native American or American Indian</li> <li>Number of points to another category [VOL]</li> <li>DK/Ref</li> </ul>
beswh son as 4 p	MER] [SPLIT B] In describing our background, we often ask someone which racial or ethnic groups st describes them. Imagine if we used instead a 10 point system where points are allocated to nichever racial or ethnic groups we think accurately describes a person. For example, if you think of meone as only of white heritage, you would allocate all 10 points to white. Or if you think of someone mixed race, but more white than African American, you might allocate 6 or 7 points to white and 3 or points to African American. Now think of your own background in racial and ethnic terms. In terms of ing Asian American, Pacific Islander, white, black, Latino, and Native American how would you scribe your race and ethnicity using this 10-point system?
	<ul> <li>Number of points Asian American</li> <li>Number of points Pacific Islander</li> <li>Number of points White</li> <li>Number of points Black or African American</li> <li>Number of points Latino or Hispanic</li> <li>Number of points Native American or American Indian</li> <li>Number of points to another category [VOL]</li> </ul>

# {THANK INTERVIEWEE}

# [THE FOLLOWING ARE QUESTIONS THE INTERVIEWER NEEDS TO COMPLETE]

Q1	1.1 Respondent's general level of information about politics and public affairs seemed:
0	Very high
0	Fairly high
0	Average
0	Fairly low
0	Very low
01	1.2 Overall, how great was the respondent's interest in the interview:
	Very high
	Fairly high
	Average
	Fairly low
	Very low
Ω1	1.3 Check if any of the items apply to the respondent:
	Respondent was tired
	Spoke slowly
	Spoke very fast
	Not intelligent
	Difficult to understand
	Agitated or stressed
	Complained
01	1.4 [If English interview] Interviewer, how would you characterize your accent when you speak in
	glish?
	Very strong
	Fairly strong
	Not that strong
	Not at all
Ω1	1.5 Interviewer, how would your own describe your race/ethnicity [TWO COLUMNS]
	White (31)
	Black or African American (32)
	Latino (33)
	Asian American (34)
0	Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (35)
0	Other (36)
	Bangladeshi (1)
	Cambodian (2)
	Chinese (3)
	Filining (4)
	Filipino (4) Hmong (5)
J	Filipino (4) Hmong (5) Indian (6)

Japanese (7)
Korean (8)
Laotian (9)
Pakistani (10)
Vietnamese (11)
Native Hawaiian (12)
Samoan (13)
Bhutanese (14)
Burmese (15)
Fijian (16)
Indonesian (17)
Malaysian (18)
Mongolian (19)
Nepali (20)
Singaporean (21)
Sri Lankan (22)
Taiwanese (23)
Thai (24)
Tongan (25)